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Independent Auditor’'s Report
To The Membors of Max Estates 128 Private Limited

Report on Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Max Estates 128 Private
Limited (Formerly Known as Accord Hotels & Resorts Private Limited) (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2025, of its profit and total comprehensive income (comprising profit and other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for thc ycar then ended on that
date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the director’s report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The director’s report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears_to be materially misstated.
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therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalemenl thal we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued
by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March, 2025, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31ist March, 2025 from being appointed as a




director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B”; and

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable
to the company for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position;

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided-under (a) and (b) above, contain any
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(v) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and
hence provisions of section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made
using privileged/ administrative access rights, as described in note 28 to
the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in
respect of other accounting software wherever audit log was enabled.
Additionally, the audit trail of prior year(s) has not been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated

in Note 28 to the financial statements.
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on -Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirement” section of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2025, we report that:

1. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) As the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative detail and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets during the year.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the same have been properiy dealt with in the books of accounts.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant & equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has
not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given by Lhe managemenl, Lthe company
does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder, if so. Hence no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company.

2. (@) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

3. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b),
3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities given in respect of which provisions of section
185 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable to the Company. Further, since the company is
an infrastructure company within the meaning of schedule VI of the companies Act, 2013, the
provision of section 186 of companies Act, 2013 is not applicable and hence not commented




5. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits during the year.

6. According to the information and explanation given to us, we are informed that the
maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any
other statutory dues, as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company, there is no due in respect of income tax, goods and service tax and duty of
customs as on 31%t March, 2025 which have not been deposited on account of disputes.

8. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

9. (a) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
orgovernment or any government authority.

©) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
books and records examined by us, the term loans taken during the year have been
applied for the purposes for which those were obtained.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis. Hence reporting under
clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries.

6)) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f)of the Order is not applicable,

10.(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instrumen and term loan during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x) of

the Order is not applicable. Pﬁ‘SOO{?




11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or placement of shares during the
year. y

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower
complaints received during the year by the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, all transaction with
related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to financial Statement, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provision of section 177 are not applicable to the
company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) in so far as it relates to section 177 of
the Act is not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of "the
Companies Act 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause (xv) of the paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group
has one CIC which is registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not incurred cash losses in the year under
audit and has incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.




19. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

20.The provisions of section 135 of the companies Act 2013 does not apply to the Company.
Accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

D

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner 0 Chartered
Membership No. 097820
For and on behalf of

R K D B & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants
FRN:- N500427

UDIN! 2509 782RNTKUAS2I2.
New Delhi, dated the

2 1 MAY 2025
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MAX ESTATES 128 PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS ACCORD HOTELS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Max Estates 128
Private Limited (Formerly Known as Accord Hotels & Resorts Private Limited) (“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
flnanclal information, as required under the Companies -Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
‘financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

—R0\00

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner

Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of

R KD B & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants

FRN:- N500427

vDIN! 2509 F208MTRLA2G L
New Delhi, dated the

g 4 MAY 2025

a Chartered ((?)
Accountants

L



Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
CIN- U55101DL2006PTC151422

(Rs. in_Lacs)

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 21.57 1193
Financial assets
(i) Investments 4(1) - 481.84
Deferred tax assets (net) 4(ii) - 135.65
Non- current tax assets 4(iii) 943.02 .
Other non current assets 4(iv) 6,724.55 564272
Total non-current assets 7,689.14 6,272.14
Current assets
Inventories 5 37,419.49 18,699.57
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6(i) 2,842.72 383.19
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6(ii) 17,338.89 22,064.64
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 6(iii) 12,125.04 -
(iv) Loans 6(iv) 15,869.20 6,217.00
Other current assets 7 2,331.82 1,762.42
Total current assets 87,927.16 49,126.82
TOTAL ASSETS 95,616.30 55,398.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 8(i) 965.20 965.20
Other equity 8(ii) 610.13 (524.32)
Total equity 1,575.33 440.88
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 9(i) 27,722.77 332
(ii) Other financial liabilities 9(ii) 6.36 371
Provisions o(iii) 117.49 81.58
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 4(ii) 185.02 -
Total non-current liabilities 28,031.64 88.61
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10(i) 553 7,399.18
(ii) Trade payables 10(ii)
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 56.01 19.79
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 2,611.26 1,925.78
Other current liabilities 11 63,334.72 45,522.89
Provisions 12 1.81 1.83
Total current liabilities 66,009.33 54,869.47
TOTAL LIABILITIES 94,040,97 54,958.08
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 95,616.30 55,398.96
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-43

The ace nying notes are integral part of the financial statements
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DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner

Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of

RKDB & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN:- N500427
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11 MAY 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Max Estates 128 Private Limited

Voo iomas

Nitin Kumar

(Director)

(DIN 03048794)

ishi Raj
(Director)
(DIN 08490762)



Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U55101DL2006PTC151422

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
INCOME
Revenue from operations - -
Other income 13 3,633.31 901.40
Total income 3,633.31 901.40
EXPENSES
Cost of material consumed, construction & other related project cost 4 = -
Finance costs 15 2,180.75 -
Depreciation and amortization expense 16 2,62 1.28
Other expenses 17 175.61 1,439.10
Total expenses 2,358.98 1,440.38
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,274.33 (538.98)
Tax expenses
- Current tax - -
- Deferred tax 4(ii) 320.67 (135.65)
Total tax expense 320.67 (135.65)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 953.66 (403.33)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent year: - -
Income tax effect - -
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans = =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax = e
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 953.66 (403.33)
Earnings per equity share (Nominal Value of share Rs.10/-)
Basic (Rs.) 18 9.88 4.18)
Diluted (Rs.) 9.88 (4.18)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-43

The accoppanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
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DINESH KUMAR HCHAS
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Membership No. 097820 Accountants |
For and on behalf of &
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Chartered Accountants
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New Delhi, dated the

11 MAY 05

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Max Estates 128 Private Limited

Rishi Raj

Nitin Kumar
(Director) (Director)
(DIN 03048794) (DIN 08490762)



Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U55101DL2006PTC151422

(Rs. in_Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,274.33 (538.98)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2.62 128
ESOP expense 2528 -
Profit on Fair valuation of current investment (75.38) (212.34)
Profit on sale of Long term Investment - -
Interest income (3,449.41) (689.05)
Operating profit before working capital changes (2,222.56) (1,439.09)
Waorking capital adjustments:
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 35.89 82.18
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 17,811.82 45,507.14
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables - 119.59
Increase / (Decrease) in other non current financial liabilities 2.65 37
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (18,719.91) (9,831.48)
(Increase) / Decrease in current financial assets -
(Increase) / Decrease in other current and non-current assets (1,640.08) (6,797.11)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current financial assets -
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables 721,70 1,451.06
Cash generated from operations (4,010.49) 29,096.00
Income tax paid (943.02) (341.64)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (4,953.51) 28,754.37
Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds /(Purchases ) property, plant and equipment post adjustments (12.26) (10.21)
Investments in Mutual Funds (15,499.13) (26,479.64)
Redemption of Mutual funds 13,596.81 26,308.79
Interest Received 3,449.41 510.36
Loan given (36,293.42) (4,587.91)
Net movement in fixed deposits (12,136.20) 178.69
Loan received back 26,641.23 4,796.75
Net cash flows used in investing activities (20,253.55) 716.83
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings - -
Repayment of borrowings - -
Movement in other equity 155.50 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 27,719.45 6.50
Repayment of Short-term borrowings (7,393.65) (1.10)
Repayment of long-term borrowings - (7,442.00)
Net cash flows from financing activities 20,481.30 (7,436.60)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,725.76) 22,034.59
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 22,064.64 30.04
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 17.338.89 22,064.64
Components of cash and cash equivalents :-
(Rs. in_Lacs)
Asat As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Balances with banks:

On current accounts

Deposits with original maturity for less than 3 months
Cash on hand
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6,079.80 255.23
11,258.44 21,807.64
0.65 1.76
17,338.89 22,064.64
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Max Estates 128 Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN- US5101DL2006PTC151422

a) Equity share capital
Particulars Nos. (Rs. in Lacs)
As at April 1,2023 96,52,000 965.20
Add: Equity share issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 96,52,000 965.20
Add: Equity share issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2025 96,52,000 965.20
b) Other equity (Rs, in Lacs)
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total equity
Retained earnings | Equity Component on| Employees Stock
account of Financial Options
Guarantee provided
by the Holding
Company

As at March 31, 2023 (188.16) 57.82 - (130.36)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (403.33) - - (403.33)
As at March 31, 2024 (591.51) 57.82 9.38 (524.32)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 953.66 B - 953.66
Equity Component on account of Financial Guarantee - 155.50 - 155.50
ESOP given during the year - B " 25.28 2528
As nt March 31, 2025 362.15 213.32 34,66 610.12

Summary of significant accounting policies
Other notes on accounts

343

The acco ing notes are integral part of the financial statements

q@\ ‘"Q\y //i c‘ ‘J( u 1
DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS

Chartered

i D Accountants
Membership No. 097820
For and on behalf of
RKDB & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN:- N500427

New Delhi, dated the

1 MAY 2025

G smou

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Max Estates 128 Private Limited

Dlrector)
(DIN 08490762)

Nitin Kumar
(Director)
(DIN 03048794)




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

1 Corporate Information

Max Estates 128 Private Limited (the company) is a company registered under Companies Act, 2013 and incorporated on 29th July, 2006. The Company engaged in the business of Real Estates
developments. Registered office of the Company is located at Max House,1 Dr. Jha Marg, Okhla, New Delhi- 110020, India
The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 21st May' 2025.

2 Material accounting policies

2,1 Basis of preparation
The financial of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rulcs, 2015 (as
amended from time to time). For all periods up to and including the period ended June 30, 2024, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance accounting standards notified under the
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liebilities which have been measured at fair value
(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
Financial Statement are presented in INR and all values are rounded to nearest Lakhs (INR 00,000) except when otherwise stated

22 S y of significant Ing pollcl

a. Current versus non-current classification
(a) The real estate development projects undertaken by the company are generally run over a period ranging upto 5 years. Operating assets and liabilities relating to such projects are classified as
current based on an operating cycle upto 5 years, Borrowings in connection with such projects are classified as current since they form part of working capital of the respective projects.
(b) Assets and liabilities, other than those discussed in paragraph (a) above, are classified as current to the extent they are expected to be realised/ are contractually repayable within 12 months from
the balance sheet date as non current, in other cases.
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
(i) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
(iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current
A liability is current when:
(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
(iii) It is due 10 settled within twelve months alter (e 1epotting perivd, vl
(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price,
taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of CENVAT credit
and VAT credit availed wherever applicable. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their respective
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the
asset is derecognized

The company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management and in the manner prescribed in
Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013,

Assets Useful lives estimated by the
t (years)
Furniture and fixtures 10 Years
Plant and Machinery 15 Years
Computers 3 Years
i 8 Years

Investment property

Property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or for both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured
initially at its cost, including related transaction cost and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to assets carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance cost are expensed when incurred
‘When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised
Investment property consist of capital work-in-progress relating to initial cost incurred for purchase of land ar
lease period and building will be depreciated using the straight line method over their estimated useful life.




d. Impairment of non financial assets

&

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's, recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual
assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For the remaining economic life of the asset or cash-generating unit (CGU), a long term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
After impairment, depreciation is provide on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining economic life.

An assessments is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revelued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

(i) Financial assets

The Company classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories :-

- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through profit & loss)
- Those measured at amortized cost

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized
on the trade date, i.¢., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
(i) Debt instruments at amortized cost

(ii) Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or Joss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met;

(i) Business model test : The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual
maturity to released its fair value change), and

(ii) Cash flow characteristics test : Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

This category is the most relevant to the Company, After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, EIR is the rate that exactly discount the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets. When calculating the effective interest rate
the company estimate the expected cash flow by considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss, This category generally applies to trade and other receivables

Debt Instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a Debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not a part of a hedging relationship is recognized in statement of profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within
other gains or losses in the period in which it arises, Interest income from these Debt instruments is included in other income.

Derecognition
A finaneial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company's statement of financial
position) when:

-the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
-the Company hes transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass
through" arrangement and either;

(a) the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or
(b) the Company has retained the contractual right to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets, the financial asset is not derecognized

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has
not retained control of the financial asset, Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial
asset.




Inventories

Inventories comprise completed units for sale and property under construction (Work in progress):

(i) Completed Unsold inventory is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by including cost of land, materials, services and related overheads,

(ii) Work in progress is velued at cost. Cost comprises value of land (including development rights), materials, services and other overheads related to projects under construction

(iii) Development rights represent amount paid under agreement to purchase land/development rights and borrowing cost incurred by the Company to acquire irrevocable and exclusive licenses/
development rights in the identified land and constructed properties,the acquisition of which is either completed or is at an advanced stage. These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
(iv) Construction/ development material is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises of purchase price and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Revenue from contract or services with customer and other streams of revenue:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concludedt hut it is the principul in ity 1evenue atrangements because it Lypically contiols (e goods and services
before transferring them to the customers.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk exposure

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), o

The Company follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trede receivables. Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables, The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analyzed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit
risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used If, in subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
12- months ECL

Recinssifiention of fi inl nasets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model
are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the business mode! occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If
the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change
in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

(ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Company financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money and other payables.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90
days of recognition, Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period, They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term_Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss, Fi ial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IND AS 109
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit
and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair velue of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss The Company
has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of IND AS 109 and the
amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or medication is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Offsetting of financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultangotsty—— = :




f.

h.

Revenue Recognltion

(1) Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/ receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government and is net of rebates and discounts. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent The Company has concluded
that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. Revenue is recognised in the statement of profit and loss to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably. The Company has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ to recognise
revenue in the standalone financial statements. The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met: a) The customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Company performs; or b) The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or ¢) The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the entity has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date. For performance obligations where any of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation
is satisfied. Revenue is recognised either at point of time or over a period of time based on various condition as included in the contracts with customers

(ii) Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. 1f the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
(iii) All other i and ditures are d for on accrual basis.

P

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the income
computation and disclosure standerds (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate, if any

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporay differences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deforred tax asscts are rc-assessed at cach roporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside the statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority

The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e,, the period
for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available
in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement ™ The
Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during
the specified period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that ily takes a ial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they ocour, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

h

Provision and Centingent liabilities

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. the Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote,
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Employee benefits

Provident fund

The Company contributed to employees provident fund benefits through a trust "Max Financial Services Limited Provident Fund Trust" managed by Max Financial Services Limited (erstwhile Max
India Limited) whereby amounts determined at a fixed percentage of basic selaries of the employees are deposited to the trust every month. The benefit vests upon commencement of the employment
The interest rate payable by the trust to the beneficiaries every year is notified by the government and the Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the
investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. The Company has obtained actuarial valuation to determine the shortfall, if any, as at the Balance Sheet date

Gratuity

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. The Company has also
made contribution to Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) towards a policy to cover the gratuity liability of the employees to an extent. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of
employees at the year-end and the balance of funds with LIC is provided for as liability in the books.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit (liabilities/assets). The Company recognized the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
employee benefit expenses in statement of profit and loss

(i) Service cost comprising current service cost, past service cost, gain & loss on curtailments and non routine settlements

(i1) Net interest expenses or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the retumn on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuariel valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.
The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where
Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are tecognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. the liabilities are
presented as current emplayee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

Long term incentive plan
Employees of the Company receives defined incentive, whereby employees render services for a specified period. Long term incentive is measured on accrual basis over the period as per the terms of
contract,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value

Earning per share

Basio earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a coresponding change in resources

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects of all
potential equity shares.

. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: .

(i) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(ii) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
(iii) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

This note summarises accouting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
- Disclosures for valuation methords, significant estimates and assumptions
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

- Investment in unquoted equity shares -"Tf;é";ja.
- Financial instruments ( including those carried at amortised cost) A’ Py,
o)

s

@




2.3 Slgnificant ing jud t imates and ptions

The preparation of the Company's fi requires gement to make judg: ostimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the fi ial st its were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur

(a) Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business
relationships and the long term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could r itate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of
interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies,

(b) Fair value measurement of financial instrument

‘When the fair value of fi ial assets and fi ial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judg ats include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments.

(c) Impairment of non-Financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount, An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into ageount. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value
indicators, pe

[This space has been intentionally left blank]




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

3. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (Rs. in_Lacs)
Particulars Plant and Machinery . Furniture and fixture  Motor vehicles Computers and data Total
processing units
At cost
As at March 31, 2023 15.13 238 - 0.23 17.74
Additions B - - - -
Disposals/Adjustments - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 15.13 238 10,21 0.23 27.95
Additions - - 12.47 - 12.47
Disposals/Adjustments - - - - B
As at March 31, 2025 15,13 2.38 22.68 0.23 40.42
Depreciation
As at March 31, 2023 12,83 1.70 - 0.22 14.75
Charge for the year 0.23 0.21 0.83 - 1.27
Disposals / Adjustments - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 13.06 191 0.83 : 0.22 16.02
Charge for the year 0.10 0.35 238 - 2.83
Disposals / Adjustments - - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 13.16 2.26 3.21 0.22 18.85
e unt
As at March 31, 2025 1.97 0.12 19.47 0.01 21.57

As at March 31, 2024 2,07 0.47 9.38 0.01 11,93




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

@

(i)

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non Current financial assets -
Investments
In mutual funds (quoted) (fully paid)
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Growth- Direct Plan - 481.84
NIL Units (March 31, 2024; 1,23,648.776)
- 481.84
Aggregate amount of book value and market value of quoted investments - 481.84
Deferred tax assets/(Liability)
Tax on deferrment on brokerage (1,675.82) (1,417.58)
Difference in carrying value and tax base of property, plant and equipment (0.35) (0.17)
(1,676.17) (1,417.75)
Tax on losses and Unabsorbed depreciation 1,491.15 1,553.40
1,491.15 1,553.40
Deferred tax liability (185.02) 135.65
(iii) Non-current tax assets
Advance tax & TDS (net) 943.02 -
943.02 -
(iv) Other non-current assets
Prepaid Expenses * 6,658.54 5,632.47
Deferred Guarantee Fee 54.86 10.25
Fixed Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 11.15 -
- Pledged/ under lien/ earmarked # 6,724.55 5.642.72

* Deferred Brokerage

# includes margin money amounting to ¥ 10.50 lakhs against the bank guarantees.

[This space has been intentionally left blank]




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in_Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

5. Current assets
Inventories ( Valued at cost and NRV) 37.419.49 18,609.57
37,419.49 18,699.57

Financial assets

Bl

(i) Current investments

In mutual funds (quoted, unless otherwise stated)
Quoted mutual funds at FVTPL

SBI Liquid Fund- Direct Growth 1,066.88 101.23
26,303.987 Units (March 31, 2024: 2,678.581)

TATA Liquid Fund Direct Plan- Growth 715.02 -
17,470.333 Units (March 31, 2024: Nil)

Axis Liquid Fund- Direct Growth 501.87 281.96
17,404.148 Units (March 31, 2024: 10,506.358)

ICICI Liquid Fund Direct Plan- Growth 558.95 -
145,602,303 Units (March 31, 2024: Nil)
2,842.72 383.19

Aggregate amount of book value and market value of quoted investments 2,842,72 383.19
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments -
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments * -
(ii) Cnsh and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
In current accounts 6,079.80 255.23
Deposits with original maturity for less than 3 months * 11,258.44 21,807.64
Cash in hand 0.65 1.76

17,338.89 22,064.63

* Amount held in escrow account for a project under Real Estate ( Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 ("RERA"). The money can be utilised
for payments of the project only

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above

Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 12,125.04 -
12,125.04 -

~ Amount held in escrow account for a project under Real Estate ( Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 ("RERA"). The money can be utilised
for payments of the project only

(iv) Loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loans to related parties* 15,869.20 6,217.00
15,869.20 6,217.00

*The Company has extented loan to its holding Company i.e. Max Estates Limited (‘MEL') amounting Rs. 10,50 lakhs. The said loan is interest
free and is repayable on demand.

*The Company has extended loan to its fellow subsidiary company, i.e. Max Estates Gurgaon Two Limited amounting Rs. 14,819.19 lakhs. The said
loan is @11.85 p.a interest and is repayable on demand.

7. Other current assets (unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Prepaid expenses 24,04 21.63
Balance with statutory authorities 155,18 556.39
Security Deposit 15.84 6.48
Deferred Guarantee Fee 37.28 20.44

Advance recoverable in cashand kind
- Considered good 2,099.49 1,157.48

2,331.82 1,762.42




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

8, Share capital and other equity

(i) Equlty share capital

(R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a) Authorised share capital

100,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 100,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital

96,52,000 (March 31, 2024: 96,52,000) equity sheres of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 965.20 965.20
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 965.20 965.20

b) Reconciliation of (he shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
Equiiy shares No. of shares (R4, T Incs) No. of shares (Re In lacs)
At the beginning of the year 96,52,000 965,20 96,52,000 965.20
Add: Shares issued during the year | - - 3 -
Outstanding at the end of (he year 96,52|000 965,20 96,52,000 965.20

¢) Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The company has not declared any dividend. In the event of

liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive ining essets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proporion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders,

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up
Max states Linited- Hulding Conpany und Ils Numinees 96,52,000 100.00% 96,52,000 100.U0%

e} req

Name of the Shareh Mareh 31, 2025 Muarch 31, 2024

No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Max Estates Limited- Holding Company and Its Nominees 96,52,000 100.00% 96,52,000 100.00%

) Aggregate number of Shares issued for consideration other than cash during the year of five years immediately preceding the reporting date - NIL

¢) Shareholding of Promoters

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Name of promoters No, of shares % of total shares e shwid fj"ml‘ the No. of shares % of total shares O.A’ change
period during the vear

Max Estates Limited 96,51.994 99.99% 96.51.994 99 99% 100.00%
Mr_ Sehil Vachani 1 0.00% 1 0.00% 100 00%
Mr_Rishi Rai 1 0.00% 1 0.00% 100.00%
1Mr. Nitin Kumar § 0.00% L 0.00% 100.00%
Mr. Bishwaiit Das 1 0.00% 1 0.00% 100 .00%
Mr. Anshul Gauray | 0.00% i 0.00% 100 00%
Mr. V. Krishnan I 0.00% 1 0.00% 100.00%




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

8 (ii) Other equity

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Retained earnings (refer note a below) 362.15 (591.52)

Equity Component on account of Financial Guarantee provided by the Holding Company 213.32 57.82

(refer note b below)

Employee stock options outstanding (refer note ¢ below) 34.66 9.38

610,13 (524.32)

a) Retained earnings

At the beginning of the year (591.52) (188.18)

Profit/(Loss) for the year 953.66 (403.33)

Less: Distribution of Profit on account of Financial Guarantee provided to Holding Company = -

Items of other comprehensive income recognized directly in retained earnings

At the end of the year 362.15 (591.52)

b) Equity Component on account of Financial Guarantee provided by the Holding Company

At the beginning of the year 57.82 57.82

Add: additions during the year 155.50 -

At the end of the year 213.32 57.82

c) Other equity

At the beginning of the year 9.38 -

Add: additions on account equity created ESOP 25.28 9.38

At the end of the year 34.66 9.38

Nature an rpose of reserves:

Retained earnings - Retained earnings are profits of the company earned till date less transferred to general reserve.

Equity Component on account of Financial Guarantee provided by the Holding Company - Company has received financial guarantee from the immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company for taking the loan from Bank on which based on Ind AS 109, company has recognised equity component.
Equity Component on account of Interest Free Loan by the Holding Company - Company has received interest free long term loan from the immediate holding

company on which based on Ind AS 109, company has recognised equity component.




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

9 (i) Borrowings (Non- current)

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current borrowings :-
Term loans (secured)
From Financial Institutions 27,717.04 7,397.10
Vehicle loans (secured) 11.26 5.39
27,728.30 7,402.49
Less: Amount disclosed under "other current financial liabilities" (5.53) (7.399.18)
27,722.77 3.32
— ==
Aggregate Secured loans 27,722.77 3.32

1) Standard Chartered Capital Limited & Standard Chartered Bank ( Secured)

The Company has taken a secured term loan facility of Rs. 30,000 Lakhs and Rs. 15,000 Lakhs from Standard Chartered Capital Limited and Standard Chartered Bank
respectively. Out of this facility, the company has drawn INR 28,000 Lakhs till March 31, 2025

i) Primary and collateral security:

a) First pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over Project land and unsold inventory with a minimum-security cover of 1.5x (to be maintained at all times during the
tenor of the Facilities).

v) First parl passu charge by way of hypothecatlon over moveable fixed assets, recelvables from sold units and future cash flows of the unsold/cancelled units

¢) Corporate Guarantee of Max Estates Limited

d) First charge on DSRA in FD's with Standard Chartered Bank

¢) Debt service reserve account (DSRA) - 3 months interest to be created

i) Repayment terms:-
Loan will be payable in 6 installinents starting from 27th month from disbursement ended on 48th month, i.e, May' 2028

iii) Interest servicing:-
ROl is 11.40% p.a. payable monthly on SCCL facility & 10.90% p.a. payable monthly on SCB facility

2) Vehicle loan
Vehicle loans amounting to Rs. 16.50 Lakhs (March 31,2024 - Rs. 6.50 Lakhs) are secured by way of hypothecation of respective vehicles, The loan is repayable in 3 years.
Rate of interest is 9.20- 9.35%

(ii) Other Financial Liabilities
Security deposits received 6.36 3.71
6,36 3.71

(iii)  Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 48.76 27.33
Leave encashment 68.73 54.25

117.49 81.58




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
10. Current financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
Current maturity of long term borrowings 5,53 7,399.18
5,53 _7'329 18
(ii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 56.01 19.79
¥ Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,611.26 1,925.78
2,667.27 1,945.57

Tride Payables ageing schedule as on 315t March 2025

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
| MSME 56.01 s =
Others* 2,611.26 - -

Disputed Dues - MSME

Disputed Dues - Others

Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31st March 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
MSME 19.79 - -
Others* 1,925.78 - -

Disputed Dues - MSME

Disputed Dues - Others

* Includes retention monies with respect to contractors, which became payable after satisfying the terms and conditions embedded with their

respective contracts

11. Other current liabilities

Statutory dues

Contract Liability * (Advance (rom Customers)

Other payables

* Revenue will be recognized as per Ind AS 115

12. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment

Provision for gratuity

785.80 122.52
62,461.57 45,329.36
87.35 71.02
63,334.72 45,522.89
1.18 1.49

0.63 0.34
1.81 1.83




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
13.  Other income
Interest received 3,449.41 689.05
Gain on mutual Fund 57.36 208.07
Gain/(Loss) on fair valuation of financial instrument 18.02 428
Other non-operating income 108.52 -
3,633.31 901.40
—_—




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
14. Cost of material consumed, construction & other related project cost
Opening balance of Project in progress 18,699.57 8,891.60
Add: Cost incurred during the period 18,719.91 9.807.97
Total Cost incurred 37,419.49 18,699.57
Less: Closing balance of project in progress 37,419.49 18,699.57
15. Finance costs
Interest on Term Loan 2,180.71
Bank charges 0.04
2,180.75 E
16. Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 2.62 0.06
2.62 0.06
17. Other expenses
Facility Management expenses 88.14 -
Auditor's Remuneration 1.00 0.67
Marketing Expenses 86.47 380.69
175.61 381.36
Payment to auditor
As auditor:
Audit tee (including hmited review) 1.00 0.67
1.00 0.67




Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Notes forming part of the linancial statements

18. Earnings Per Share

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars for the year ended for the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Basic EPS
Net profit/(loss) for calculation of basic EPS 953.66 (403.33)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 96,52,000 96,52,000
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 9.88 (4.18)
Dilutive EPS
Profit after tax (Rs. in Lacs) 953.66 (403.33)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 96.52.000 96,52,000
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 9.88 (4.18)
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19. Related party disclosures

Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not

Holding Company Max Estates Limited
Fellow Subsidiary Companies Max Towers Private Limited

Max Estates Gurgaon Limited

Max Estates Gurgaon Two Limited

Max Estates Noida Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Known as
Astiki Realty Pvt Ltd)

Max Square Limited

Pharmax Corporation Limited
Max L. Limited

Acreage Builders Private Limited
Max Asset Services Limited

Directors and Key management Mr. Rishi Raj (Director)
personnel Mr. Nitin Kumar (Director)
Mr. Anshul Gauray (Director)

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Entities controlled or jointly controlled by person or The Unstuffy Hotels Co Ltd
entities where person has significantly influence or Leeu Dassenberg Estates (Pty) Ltd
entities where person having control is Key Management Riga Foods LLP

personnel New Delhi Houses Services Ltd
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19 (a). Details of transactions with related parties
(Rs. in Lacs)

] . for the year ended for the year ended
S.No [Nature of transaction Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1 |Loan given Max Estates Limited 7.923.00 4,587.91
Max Estates Gurgaon Two Limited ~28,370.42 z
Total ) 36,293.42 4,587.91

2 [Loan received back Max Estates Limited 13,090.00 4,796.75

: Max Estates Gurgaon Two Limited 13,551.23

Total 26,641.23 4,796.75

3 [Shared Service paid Max Estates Limited 1,816.34 | 793.96
Total 1,816.34 793.96

4  |Auditorium and Hall rental charges Max Asset Services Limited 0.37 9.86
Total 0.37 9.86

5 __|Catering Services ‘ Riga Foods LLP ' 12.57 12.25
Total 12.57 12.25

6 [Manpower Supply New Delhi House Services Ltd. 2.01 .
Total 2,01 -

7 |Sale of Used Furniture : Leeu Dassenberg Estates (Pty) Ltd 82.20 -
Total 82.20 -

8 _|Purchase of Lights The Unstuffy Hotels Co Ltd 36.84 -
Total 36.84 -

9  |Interest Received Max Estates Gurgaon Two Limited 2,266.79
Total 2,266.79 -

10 [Reimbursement of expenses Max Asset Services Limited - 20.74
Max Estates Limited 15.44 5.17
Toltal 15.44 2591
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19 (b). Balances outstanding at year end
(Rs. in lacs)
As at As at
S.No [Nature of transaction Particulars March 31, 2028 March 31,2024
1 Loan outstanding Max Estates Limited 1,050.00 6.217.00
Max Estates Gurgaon Two Limited 14,819.20 E
Total 15,869.20 6,217.00
2 Trade receivables/(Trade Payables)
Max Estates Limited (1,095.52) (242.717)
Max Asset Services Limited E (20.74)
Riga Foods LLP (13.13) 3.09
The Unstuffy Hotel Co Ltd. 2.01
Total (1,106.63) (260.42)

a) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions
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20. Gratuity

a)

b)

<)

d

€)

8)

h)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under Gratuity Plan, every employee who has completed five years or more of service getsa

gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service.

(Rs. in lacs)
As at As at
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Defined bertefit obligation at the beginning of the year 27.67 0.47
Current service cost 20.26 14.34
Interest expense 1.96 0.03
Benefit paid (3.89) (0.44)
Acquisition adjustment - 13.36
Remeasurement of (Gain)/loss in other comprehensive income 3.38 (0.09)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments - o
Defined benefit obligation at year end 49.39 27.67
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year a =
Expected retum on plan assets " =
Employer contribution - -
Remeasurement of (Gain)/loss in other comprehensive income - "
Fair value of plan assets at year end " -
Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) recognized in the balance sheet
Fair value of plan assets " =
Present value of defined benefit obligation 49.39 27.67
Amount recognized In balance sheet- asset / (l{ability) (49.39) (27.67)
Net defined benefit expense (recognized In the statement of profit and loss for the year )
Current service cost 20.26 14.34
Past service cost - s
Interest cost on benefit obligation 1.96 0.03
Expected retumn on plan assets - -
Net defined benefit expense debited to statement of profit and loss 22.22 14.37
Remeasurment (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 1.51 0.79
Actuarial changes.arising from changes in experience adjustments 1.87 (0.88)
Recognised in other comprehensive income 3.38 (0.09)
Broad categorles of plan assets as a percentage of total assets
Insurer managed funds NA NA
Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation
Assumption particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.87% 7.09%
Salary escalation rate 10.00% 10.00%
Mortality Rate (% of IALM 2012-14) 100.00% 100.00%
5 o . For the year ended For the year ended
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions Is as below: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits
obligations at the end of the year
Discount rate
Increase by 0.50% (3.63) (2.08)
Decrease by 0.50% 4.02 2.30
Salary growth rate
Increase by 0.50% 2.88 1.39
Decrease by 0.50% (2.64) (1.29)

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 19 Years (March 31, 2025 : 19 years)

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the
The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of

Leave Encashment (unfunded)

The Company recognises the leave encashment expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss based on actuarial valuation.
The expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Leave encashment liability at the beginning and at the end of the year :

(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars — For the year ended For the year ended
S ESORN March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Linbility at the beginning of the year ™ T "'/,'? 43.66 0.75
Adjustments made during the year @ A - (12.08)
Benefits paid during the year o) o (6.70) (0.96)
Provided during the year n 32,95 55.95
Liability at the end of the period t 2 ,f: : 69.91 43.66
o
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21, Segment reporting
The Company is a one seg| pany in the busi of real estate development. All its operations are located in India , accordingly, the Company views these activities as
one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’

22. Financial instruments

The comparison of carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories that are not measured at fair value are as follows:

(Rs. in Lokhs)

Category Carrying value Fair Value
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1) Financial asset at amortized cost
Non current & current
Loans 15,869.20 6,217.00 15,869.20 6,217.00
Other financial assets - - - =
Trade receivables - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 17,338.89 22,064.64 17,338.89 22,064 64
Investments 2,842.72 865.03 2,842.72 865.03

2) Financinl liabilities at amortized cost
Non current & current

Borrowings 27,728.30 7,402.49 27,728.30 7,402.49
Other financial liabilities 6.36 3.71 6.36 3T
Trade payables 2,667.27 1,945.57 2,66727 1,945.57

1 The Company assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans and advances to related parties, interest receivable, trade payables, capital
creditors are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature

2 The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

3 Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual
creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of

4 The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities as well as other noncurrent financial liabilities are estimated by discounting future cash
flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The valuation requires management to use observable and unobservable
inputs in the model, of which the significant oboorvablo and unobaervable inputs arc disclosed in the table below. M regularly a range ol reasonably possible
alternatives for those significant observable and unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

5 The fair valuen of the Company'o intoroot-boaring borrowings and other non-current financial liabilities aie deteimined by usiig DCF iethud using disvount 1ate tiat 1eflets the
issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period The own non-performance risk as at March 31, 2025 was assessed to be insignificant

23. Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

(i) Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets as on March 31, 2025

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans 15,869.20 - 15,869.20 -
Other financial assets . - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 17,338.89 17,338.89 - -
Investments 2,842.72 2,842,72 - -

(ii) Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets as on March 31, 2024

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans 6,217.00 - 6,217.00 =
Other financial assets - - : - -
Cash and cash equivalents 22,064.64 22,064.64
Investments 865.03 865.03 -

(iii) Quentitative disclosure of fair value measurement hietwchy for inuncial liabilities as on March 31, 2025

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Borrowings 27,728.30 - 27,728.30 -
Trade pavables 2,667.27 - 2,667.27 .

(iv) Quentitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial liabilities as on March 31, 2024

Particulars Carrying value Fair value

S March 31, 2024
pSSOC> Tevel 1 Tovel 2 Level 3

Borrowings / ‘tﬂ/ \Y /\\ 7,402.49 - 7,402.49 E
Trade payables @ - 1,945 57 - 1,945.57 -

CRartad s
C'Acc t s‘ff
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24.

Fi ial risk

g t objectives and policies
The Company’s has instituted an overall risk management programme which also focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Company's financial performance. The Corporate Finance department, evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the various stakeholders.

The Company is exposed to capital risk, market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. These risks are managed pro-actively by the Senior Management of the Company, duly supported
by various Groups and Committees.

a) Capital risk

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide retums to its shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to provide for sufficient capital expansion. The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 9, cash and
cash equivalents disclosed in note 6 and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

Iy) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company employees prudent liquidity risk management
practices which inter alia means maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Given the nature of the underlying businesses, the corporate finance maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines and this way liquidity
risk is mitigated by the availability of funds to cover future commitments. Cash flow forecasts are prepared not only for the entities but the Group as a whole and the utilized
borrowing facilities are monitored on a daily basis and there is adequate focus on good management practices whereby the collections are managed efficiently. The Company while
borrowing funds for large capital project, negotiates the repayment schedule in such a manner that these match with the generation of cash on such investment. Longer term cash
flow forecasts are updated from time to time and reviewed by the Investment and Performance Review Committee of the Board.

The table below represents the maturity profile of Company's finangial liabilities at the end of March 31, 2025 based on contractual undiscounted payments :-
March 31, 2024
31,202 0-1 Year 1-5 Years MOl Total

Years

Borrowings 7.399.18 333 - 7.402,50

Trade payable 1,945.57 - - 1,945.57

Other financial liabilities - - 371 3.71

% to Total 99.92% 0.04% 0.04% 100.00%

March 31, 2025 0-1Year | 1.8 Years | MorethanS | o)
Years

Borrowings 553 27,722.77 - 27,728.30

‘I'rade payable 266727 - = 2.667.27

Other financial liabilities - - 6.36 6.36

% to Total 8.79% 91.19% 0.02% 100.00%

¢} Credit risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments.

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Management evaluate credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. Receivable control management Department assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and other factors. The Company provides credit to individuals on exceptional basis only. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date on an individual basis.

(i) Financial instruments and cash deposit

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made in bank deposits and other risk free securities. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counter party's
potential failure to make payments. Credit limits of all authorities are reviéwed by the management on regular basis. All balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to
low credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to the Company.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in the liquidity table above.

d) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises three types of
risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and
borrowings, deposits, investments and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025. The
analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and
liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held as of March 31, 2025.

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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25. Commitments and contingencies

a)

0

Commitments (Rs. in lacs)

Particulars As at As at|
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Captial Commitment

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not accounted for 21,597.87 13,570.73

Less: Capital advances (2,099.49) (1,157.48)

Net commitments 19,498.38 12,413.25
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26. Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company, share premium and ail

other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s capital m t is that it maintain an efficient capital structure and maximize the shareholder

5

value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial

covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, The Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital ptus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest

bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

(Rs. in lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bormrowings 27,728.30 7,402.49
Other financial liabilities 6.36 3.71
Trade payables 2,667.27 1,945.57
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents (17,338.89) (22,064.64)
Net Debt 13,063.03 (12,712.87)
Equity Share Capital 965.20 965.20
Other Equity 610,13 (524.32)
Total Equity 1,575.33 440.88
Total Capital and net debt 14,638.36 (12,271.99)
Gearing ratio 89.24% 103.59%
26.1 Analysis
a  Curent Asset 87,927.16 49,126.82
Cuurent Liability 066,009.33 54,869.47
Current Ratio 1.33 0.90
Variance
Reason: Increase in Current Liabilities due to increase in contract liability arises till Revenue from sale of Inventory recognised
b  Debt 27,728.30 7,402.49
Shareholder Equity 1,575.33 440.88
Debt-Equity Ratio 17.60 16.79
Variance
Reason: Repayment of Debt
¢ Eamnings available for debt servies 3,457.70 (537.70)
Interest 2,180.75 -
Principal 27,728.30 '7.402.49
Debt Services Coverage Ratio 0.12 (0.07)
Variance
Reason: Debt repayment and increase in losses of the company
d  Net Income (annual) 953.66 (403.33)
Shareholder Equity 1,575.33 440.88
Return on Equity Ratio 60.54% -91.48%
Variance
Reason: Increase in marketing expenses
¢  Net annual sale/Revenue from Operation - -
Working Capital 21,917.83 (5,742.65)
Net Capital Turnover Ratio - -
Variance
Reason:
f  Net Profit 953.66 (403.33)
Net annual sale/Revenue from Operation - -
Net Profit Ratio - -
Reason: Increase in marketing expenses
g  Eaming before interest and tax (EBIT) 3,455.08 (538.98)
Capital Employed 29,606,97 529.49
Return on Capital employed 11.67% -101,79%
Variance
Reason: Increase in Current Liabilities due to increase in contract liability arises till Revenue from sale of Inventory recognised
h  Income generated from Investments 3,506.77 897.11
Investment 14,101.16 0.00
Return on Investment 24.87% 0.00%
Variance

Reason: Investments made during the year

27. DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ETERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES
DEVELOPMENT (MSMED) ACT, 2006
The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the avallah]mniormmmm which has been relied upon by the auditors.
According to such identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of 'The Micro, Small and it

.

evelopment (MSMED) Act, 2006' are as follows:
(Rs, in lacs)

@ \ As at Asat
o cn {ed March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
- Principal amount 56.01 19.79
- Interest thereon Nil Nil




i} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18, along with the amounts of the payment

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day. Nil Nil
iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this act. Nil Nil
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. Nil Nil
v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small investor. Nil Nil

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the
status of suppliers under the MSMED.

28.  The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not eriabled for certain changes made using
privileged/ administrative access rights to the application. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting
software. being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting software.

29. The Company has no outstanding derivative or foreign currency exposure as at the end of the current year and previous year.

30. Events after the Reporting period
There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations

31, The company does not have any transaction with the companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act
1956 during the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

32, There are no changes or satisfaction which are to be registered with the registrar of companies during the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

33.  The company is in compliance with number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the companies (Restriction on
number of layers) rules 2017 during the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

34. The company has not invested or traded in crypto currency or virtual currency during the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

35. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transaction Act
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formally the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder during the period ended March 31,
2025 and March 31, 2024,

36.  The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authorities during the period ended
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

37,  The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the competent authority in terms of section 232 to 237 of the Companies Act 2013
during the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

38.  During the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books
of accounts in the course of tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act
196 1Y

39. During the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company has not advanced or loan or invested funds (either borrowed funds or the share
premiumm or kind of funds) to any other person or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

40.  During the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company has not received any fund from any persons or entities including foreign entities
(Funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

41. During the year, the Company has launched its second phase named " Estate 128 - II", located at Sector 128 and the same is registered with UP RERA number as
UPRERAPRJ294911/12/2024. The project has achieved 100% sales of INR 892.7 crores, "Estate 128 - II"" s having one high rise tower with 67 units anchored
in the organisation’s LiveWell philosophy. The Company has also received advances amounting from the customer amounting to ~ Rs. 153 erores.

42.  Previous year numbers have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever considered necessary. '

43. Note No. 1 to 42 form integral part of the Balance sheet and Statement of profit & Loss.
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